

Planning Commission Minutes
October 13, 2021

Minutes of the Planning Commission 
Of the City of Portland
Held on Wednesday, October 13, 2021 at 7:00 P.M.
In Council Chambers at City Hall

Portland Planning Commission Members Present: Fitzsimmons, Johnston, Williamson, Hinds, Culp, Kmetz

Absent: Roeser

Staff:  City Manager Gorman; City Clerk Miller

Guests: Paul LeBlanc, AICP of PLB Planning Group; David Straub of Mayberry Homes; Larry Nix; Residents of the Rindlehaven Neighborhood Steve Dawdy, Gary and Rosalyn Olson, Larry Tygesen, Kathy Burns, Dan Sutberry, Larry Nix; Residents on Cutler Rd. Samantha and Tom Thelen

Chair Fitzsimmons called the meeting to order at 7:00 P.M. with the Pledge of Allegiance.

There was no public comment.

Motion by Williamson, supported by Kmetz, to approve the proposed Agenda. 
All in favor. Approved.

Motion by Kmetz, supported by Williamson, to excuse the absence of Member Roeser.
All in favor. Approved.

Motion by Williamson, supported by Johnston, to approve the minutes of the August 11, 2021 meeting as presented.
All in favor. Approved.

Chair Fitzsimmons opened the Public Hearing at 7:01 P.M.

City Manager Gorman stated the purpose of the Public Hearing is to take comment on and consider a proposed rezoning of a 107-acre parcel from TND PUD to R-2 Traditional Residential District and a 22-acre parcel from TND PUD to C-2 General Business District, located in the area of Rowe Ave. and Rindlehaven Commons, by Mayberry Homes on a portion of the Rindlehaven Development.

City Manager Gorman noted that Public Hearing notices were published in the Review & Observer and mailed to property owners within a 300’ radius of the proposed rezoning.

Mr. LeBlanc stated this request by Mayberry Homes has been discussed with the City several times over the past couple of years. The residential component would allow for up to 600 new homes to be constructed. The commercial component would allow most any type of commercial use and is a significant size.

Mr. LeBlanc further noted his concern with the amount of property proposed to be rezoned as commercial and the potential traffic impact of a significant commercial development with only one access to the property. The current PUD allows for commercial development but requires another access point to be developed. He further suggested recommending not approving any commercial zoning or only up to 10 acres as included in the current PUD.

David Straub of Mayberry Homes provided a history of the development of the Rindlehaven property by Mayberry Homes.

Member Johnston noted that Mayberry Homes currently has the Rindlehaven listed for sale. She asked if there are potential buyers or any further development planned.

Mr. Straub stated the proposed rezoning of the property makes it feasibly for Mayberry Homes to redevelop the property. Further development of the property is currently listed in Mayberry Homes business plan for 2022. Their planned development of the property would bring much needed homes to the area.

Member Kmetz asked when development of the proposed commercial property would be developed.

Mr. Straub stated Mayberry Homes is not currently in commercial development and would consider selling the commercially zoned property.

Chair Fitzsimmons asked if any thought had been given to the commercially zoned property coming off from the Cutler Rd. end of the property.

Mr. Straub stated that Mayberry Homes would be flexible on relocation of the commercial property.

There was discussion of the options the Planning Commission has for approval of the proposed rezoning.

Steve Dawdy commented that under the City’s C-2 Commercial Zoning District there are 26 permitted uses and approximately 20 permitted with Special Land Use approval. He stated that he would prefer the proposed commercial portion of the property be located at the end of the property near Cutler Rd. to allow for better access to Grand River Ave. He stated he is interested know Mayberry Homes plan for residential development of the property.

Gary Olson commented his feeling that Mayberry has a plan for commercial use of the property that they are not disclosing. He does not want the neighborhood to deteriorate with commercial development.

Samantha Thelen stated that she and her husband bought the property on Cutler Rd. adjacent to the Rindlehaven property for the peaceful surrounding. She stated her feeling that here is an ulterior motive by Mayberry Homes for the development of the requested commercial zoning.

Mr. Dawdy stated The Brook does not create buffer or sound barrier from traffic on I-96 as he had thought it might.

Dan Sutberry asked how the commercial property in the current PUD is zoned.

Member Kmetz stated the commercial property is defined by the PUD so have to look at that to determine the commercial uses.

City Manager Gorman further explained how a PUD works and the history of the Rindlehaven property.

Mr. Sutberry stated he is not in favor of commercial development in the Rindlehaven neighborhood; especially if traffic would be coming in on the main road.

Rosalyn Olson stated she is not in favor of putting commercial development in a residential area where it would have no visibility. She further stated that she loves Mayberry Homes and would like to see more of their residential development.

Member Johnston asked the residents in attendance how many of them would sell their homes if the requested commercial zoning is approved.

All of the residents in attendance raised their hands.

Larry Tygesen stated that he is a resident on Rowe Ave. He stated the intersection of Rowe Ave. and Grand River Ave. is already a problem; it would become more of an issue with the addition of more residences.

Mrs. Thelen stated the condition of Cutler Rd. would need to be improved to handle increased traffic if an access from Rindlehaven were added onto it.

City Manager Gorman stated when The Brook proposed their development the traffic issues was considered. The City will continue to evaluate the intersection as further development occurs.

Mr. LeBlanc stated there is already a PUD in place that would allow several hundred single family homes; in addition to multi-family and townhomes. If the proposed rezoning is approved Mayberry Homes would still have to come back to the City for approvals and a tipping point would be hit that would require nothing further to be developed until the traffic issue is addressed. He noted that approving the proposed rezoning doesn’t mean the City would be allowing anything “carte blanche”.

There was discussion of how much commercial property is in the current PUD.

Mr. Olson expressed his concern with the proposed commercial zoning.

There was discussion.

Chair Fitzsimmons clarified the request for rezoning would get rid of the current PUD.

Chair Fitzsimmons closed the Public Hearing at 7:55 P.M.

Under New Business, the Planning Commission considered the proposed rezoning of a 107-acre parcel from TND PUD to R-2 Traditional Residential District and a 22-acre parcel from TND PUD to C-2 General Business District, located in the area of Rowe Ave. and Rindlehaven Commons, by Mayberry Homes on a portion of the Rindlehaven Development.

Member Kmetz stated his feeling the proposed commercial zoning is too large and should be relocated to a different location.

The rest of the Planning Commission concurred.

There was discussion of the options the Planning Commission has in consideration of this matter.

Motion by Williamson, supported by Johnston, to table the rezoning request of a 107-acre parcel from TND PUD to R-2 Traditional Residential District and a 22-acre parcel from TND PUD to C-2 General Business District, located in the area of Rowe Ave. and Rindlehaven Commons, by Mayberry Homes on a portion of the Rindlehaven Development.
All in favor. Approved.

City Manager Gorman presented information received from Larry Nix for the proposed development of a storage facility on the 5-acres of property between Tom’s Food Center and Portland Apartments. This would be a permitted use per the current zoning.

Mr. Nix provided an overview of the proposed development.

There was discussion.

City Manager Gorman noted the update of Chapter 42 (Zoning) of the Code of Ordinances that is in process and will be provided to the Planning Commission for review and comment in the near future. There has been a request to allow Airbnb types of short-term rentals; this type of use is not currently allowed.

Mr. LeBlanc stated that short-term rentals are allowed by many communities and further outlined some of the pros/cons.

There was discussion.

City Manager Gorman proved development updates on various projects happening throughout the City of Portland.

There were no Planning Commission member comments.

Motion by Williamson, supported by Culp, to adjourn the meeting at 9:03 P.M.
All in favor.  Approved.

Respectfully submitted,

________________________
Jason Williamson, Secretary	
1 of 5
4 of 5
